
815 North Orlando Smith Road 
Oglesby, IL  61348-9692 

Board Meeting 
A G E N D A 

Thursday, May 9, 2024 
Board Room 

5:30 p.m. 

NOTE: If you are unable to attend this meeting, or if you have questions regarding 
 the agenda, please call the President’s office, 224-0402. 



Tentative Board Committee Meetings 
Audit Finance Committee: January, April, June, and November 
Planning Committee: February and October 
Facilities Committee: May and August 
Closed Session Meeting Minutes Committee: June and December 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Illinois Valley Community College is dedicated to creating opportunities 
for students and our community by providing access to affordable, 

high-quality higher education and lifelong learning. 
 

 
 BOARD AGENDA ITEMS 
 

 
January 
 
 
February 
Authorize Budget Preparation 
Reduction in Force 
Tuition and Fee Review 
Three-year Financial Forecast 
Tenure Recommendations 
ICCTA Award Nominations 
 (Alumnus, Student Trustee, Ethical) 
 
 
March 
Reappointment of Non-tenured Faculty 
President’s Evaluation 
ICCTA Award Nominations 
 (FT/PT Faculty, Student Essay, 
 Business/Industry) 
 
 
April 
Board of Trustees Election (odd years) 
Organization of Board (odd years) 
 
 
May 
Budget Adjustments 
President’s Contract Review 
Vice Presidents’ Contract Renewals 
 
 
June 
RAMP Reports 
Authorization of Continued Payment for 
     Standard Operating Expenses 
Semi-annual Review of Closed Session 

Minutes 
College Insurance 
 
 

July 
Tentative Budget 

a. Resolution Approving Tentative Budget 
b. Authorization to Publish Notice of  
    Public Hearing 

Athletic Insurance 
 
 
August 
Budget 
 a.  Public Hearing 
 b.  Resolution to Adopt Budget 
 
 
September 
Protection, Health, and Safety Projects 
Cash Farm Lease 
Approval of College Calendar (even years) 
 
 
October 
Authorize Preparation of Levy 
Audit Report 
IVCC Foundation Update 
 
 
November 
Adopt Tentative Tax Levy 
Student Fall/Employee Demographic Reports 
 
 
December 
Adopt Tax Levy 
Schedule of Regular Meeting Dates and Times 
Semi-annual Review of Closed Session Minutes 
 

  
 MISSION STATEMENT 
 



ILLINOIS VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
Board of Trustees Meeting 
Thursday, May 9, 2024 – 5:30 p.m. – Board Room (C-307) 
 
The meeting can be accessed by the public at link https://ivcc-edu.zoom.us/j/87920654409 
and meeting ID number 879 2065 4409. For dial-in, call 1 (312) 626-6799. 
 

A G E N D A 
1. Call to Order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Moment of Silence 

4. Roll Call 

5. Approval of Agenda 

6. Public Comment 

7. Consent Agenda Items - Anyone may remove an item from the consent item list by requesting 
the chair to do so. Items removed will be discussed and voted upon immediately following 
passage of the remaining consent items. 

7.1 Approval of Minutes – April 11, 2024 Board Meeting (Pages 1-7) 

7.2 Approval of Bills - $1,502,183.22 

7.2.1 Education Fund - $1,012,655.84 

7.2.2 Operations and Maintenance Fund - $98,761.05 

7.2.3 Operations and Maintenance Fund (Restricted) - $117,251.34 

7.2.4 Auxiliary Fund - $106,045.14 

7.2.5 Restricted Fund - $75,693.21 

7.2.7 Liability, Protection, and Settlement Fund – $91,776.64 

7.3 Treasurer’s Report (Pages 8-29) 

7.3.1 Financial Highlights (Pages 9-10) 

7.3.2 Balance Sheet (Pages 11-12) 

7.3.3 Summary of FY24 Budget by Fund (Pages 13-20) 

7.3.4 Budget to Actual by Budget Officers (Page 21) 

7.3.5 Statement of Cash Flows (Page 22) 

7.3.6 Investment Status Report (Pages 23-27) 

7.3.7 Disbursements - $5,000 or more (Pages 28-29) 

7.4 Personnel – Stipends for Pay Periods Ending April 6, 2024 and April 20,  
 2024 and Part-Time Faculty and Staff Appointments April 2024 (Pages 30-32) 

8. President’s Report 

9. Student Trustee’s Report 

https://ivcc-edu.zoom.us/j/87920654409


IVCC Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda 
May 9, 2024 
Page 2 
 

10. Committee Reports 

11. Bid Results – Robotic Welder (Pages 33-34) 

12. Board Policy 03.05 Certification of Health (Pages 35-36) 

13. Board Policy 03.21 Medical-Occupational Examinations (Pages 37-39) 

14. Faculty Retirement – Dr. Marjorie Francisco, Nursing (Pages 40-41) 

15. Vice President Contract – Kathryn Ross, Vice President for Business Services and 
Finance (Page 42) 
 
Approval of the FY25 and FY26 employment contract for Kathryn Ross, Vice President 
for Business Services and Finance. This results in an annualized salary of $116,200.00 
and duties, benefits, and other conditions as presented in the contract. Salary for FY26 
will be presented to the Board for approval in May, 2025. 
Contract link: https://www.ivcc.edu/board/contracts/index.php. 

16. Items for Information (Pages 43-56) 

16.1 Board Policy 01.15 Board Travel, Conference, and Meeting Expenses (Pages 43-
46) 

16.2 Board Policy 03.23 Moving Expense Reimbursement for Faculty and 
Administration (Pages 47-48) 

16.3 Board Policy 05.01 Institutional Planning (Page 49-50) 
16.4 Board Procedure 03.30.01 Paid Benefit Time – Vacation (Pages 51-53) 
16.5 Renewal of Lease for University of Illinois Extension (Page 54) 
16.6 Nursing Fellowship Award – Cathy Lenkaitis (Page 55) 
16.7 Employee Separations Report (Page 56) 

17. Trustee Comment 

18. Closed Session – 1) the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance, or  
dismissal of specific employees of the public body; 2) pending or imminent litigation; 3)  
collective negotiations; and 4) closed session minutes. 

19. Possible Staff Appointment – Director of Learning Resources 

20. Possible Staff Appointment – Interim Workforce Development Support 

21. Compensation FY25 – Employees Not Affected by a Negotiated Labor Agreement 

22. Approval – Closed Session Minutes 

23. Other 

24. Adjournment 

https://www.ivcc.edu/board/contracts/index.php


______    ______ 
 EJS         AMS   
     

ILLINOIS VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
Board of Trustees 

 
Minutes of Regular Meeting 

April 11, 2024 
 

The Board of Trustees of Illinois Valley Community College District No. 513 convened a regular 
session at 5:30 p.m. on Thursday, April 11, 2024 in the Board Room (C307) at Illinois Valley 
Community College. 
 
Members Physically Present: Everett Solon, Chair 
 Jay K. McCracken, Vice Chair 
 Angela M. Stevenson, Secretary 
 Amy L. Boyles 
 Rebecca Donna 
 Jane E. Goetz 
 Maureen O. Rebholz 
 Elizabeth G. Boyles, Student Trustee 
  
Members Virtually Present:  
 
Members Telephonically Present:  
 
Members Absent:      
 
Others Physically Present: Tracy Morris, President 
 Kathy Ross, Vice President for Business Services and Finance 
 Mary Beth Herron, Director of Human Resources 
 Walt Zukowski, Attorney 
 
Others Virtually Present:   
 
 
MOMENT OF SILENCE 
There was a moment of silence to remember DeKalb County Sheriff’s Deputy Christina Musil, 
who tragically died in the line of duty; and Donna Mueller of Peru, mother-in-law of Mark 
Grzybowski, Vice President for Student Services. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
It was moved by Ms. Goetz and seconded by Ms. Stevenson to approve the agenda.  
Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, Mr. McCracken, Dr. 
Rebholz, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT  
None 
 
CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 
It was moved by Mr. McCracken and seconded by Ms. Goetz to approve the consent agenda, as 
presented. 
Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, Mr. McCracken, Dr. 
Rebholz, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 

1



Minutes of IVCC Board Meeting 
April 11, 2024 
Page 2 
 

_____     _____ 
 EJS          AMS 

The following items were approved in the consent agenda: 
 
Approval of Minutes – March 14, 2024 Decennial Committee Meeting and Board Meeting. 
 
Approval of Bills - $1,492,021.30 
Education Fund - $816,956.26; Operations and Maintenance Fund - $128,535.66; Operations and 
Maintenance (Restricted Fund) - $117,622.53; Auxiliary Fund - $313,645.34; Restricted Fund - 
$47,795.80; and Liability, Protection, and Settlement Fund - $67,465.71. 
 
Treasurer’s Report 
 
Personnel 
Approved stipends for pay periods ending March 9, 2024 and March 23, 2024 and Part-Time 
Faculty and Staff Appointments for March 2024. 
 
PRESIDENT’S REPORT 
Dr. Morris highlighted the Art Show on display between Buildings D and E which features artwork 
from IVCC students and surrounding high schools. The Project Success Leadership Team 
assembled 100 Easter baskets for Youth Service Bureau children in their care. John Riva, IVCC 
baseball player, will play for the Pistol Shrimp this summer. The Hispanic Leadership Team’s 
rummage sale raised nearly $500 for the Youth Service Bureau of the Illinois Valley. 
 
Ms. Boyles entered the meeting at 5:35 p.m. 
 
Two students had the opportunity for an internship on an independent film with Invictus Maneo 
Entertainment Group. Several other students volunteered during set up, filming, and take down. 
The Student Academic Awards Banquet was a great evening. The Recognition Event honored 63 
individuals with 37 honorees in attendance. Not counting the retirees who were honored, 585 years 
of service to IVCC was celebrated. The theatre production of Tootsie opens tonight, featuring 
students, community members, and IVCC staff. 
 
Faculty member Dr. Jeff Spanbauer guest lectured at an Illinois Archaeology class for 
grads/undergrads at NIU, has submitted a chapter to an edited volume on fortifications and 
archaeology about the Cultural Affiliation of Artifacts at Fort de Chartres (S. Illinois), is presenting 
the topic as part of a panel at the Society for Archaeology’s annual meeting, and is volunteering at 
a dig in the UK in June. Kaity Ritter, Medical Assisting Program Coordinator, was interviewed for 
an article in the Medical Assisting Today newsletter. The Ag Annual Report is now available.  
 
SABIC Plastics donated 50 lab coats for our science students, the LaSalle County Farm Bureau 
presented a $400 check to the IVCC Foundation for the campus food pantry, and IVCC employees 
continue to be active in our State of the City/Cities events. 
 
Eagles Peak had 33 visits serving 21 unduplicated households, 26 children, and a total of 119 
people in the household during March. The YMCA Little Eagles had 18 visits and 8 unique 
students in March. Chris Herman was named the Arrowhead Conference Coach of the Year.  
Explore IVCC’s open house was attended by nearly 100 prospective students and their families.  

2



Minutes of IVCC Board Meeting 
April 11, 2024 
Page 3 
 

_____     _____ 
 EJS          AMS 

Registration began this week for summer and fall classes. Kudos to the Student Self Service team 
who have worked tirelessly to covert our existing system to Self Service.  
 
Dr. Morris gave an update from the 2024 Illinois Community College Opening Enrollment Report 
that included Spring 2024 headcount enrollments were up 5.1 percent and full-time equivalent 
(FTE) enrollments were up 5.5 percent. IVCC was up 9.4 percent in headcount and 3.1 percent in 
FTE. Dual Credit enrollments increased 9.1 percent in Spring 2024 compared to Spring 2023 and 
increased 35.2 percent from three years ago. IVCC was up 41.5 percent year to year and up 34.7 
percent since 2021. 
 
The American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) in partnership with the LaSalle County Board and the 
ROE has $250,000 for financial assistance targeting the CNA, EMT-Basic, Paramedic, RN and 
LPN programs. To date, $110,500 in financial assistance with another $28,000 projected yet this 
semester. The scholarships will continue to be awarded util the funds are exhausted. 
 
Dr. Morris gave a Strategic Planning Update indicating that employee sessions are completed and 
option for goals and objectives are being formed; two student sessions will be completed in the 
next few days; Trustees can provide feedback before Monday; SLPC will determine 3-4 goals and 
objectives for year 1; SLPC and key stakeholders will determine measurements and KPI’s; and 
year 2 goal discussions will start in the fall. Alignment and updates based on the Academic 
Strategic Plan, Facility Master Plan, and IT Strategic Plan will be needed. 
 
STUDENT TRUSTEE’S REPORT 
Ms. Boyles updated the Board that the softball team had a successful 4-2 record in Florida and 
their current record is 15-3. Our baseball team current has a 4-15 record. Jonathan Cooper finished 
6th place at the Black Hawk, giving our Purple team an 8th place finish in rough conditions. Our 
men’s tennis team is 4-2-1 on the season, taking 4 dominant wins with 1 being a conference win. 
Student Government Association (SGA) is holding a picnic on April 17 in the courtyard with food, 
games, and prizes! This event will create a little fun for the middle of the semester and to celebrate 
100 years. Sophomore SGA members were just elected last week. The Student Success Committee 
will hold a Wellness Series on April 16 with different events throughout campus such as 
meditation, guest speakers to help students learn about money and finances, and a therapy dog. 
Emma Garretson, the newly elected Student Trustee, has agreed to continue writing a column for 
the IV Leader. Ms. Boyles thanked the Board for always being so welcoming and supportive. This 
opportunity was everything she hoped it would be and more! 
  
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
None  
 
RESOLUTION HONORING STUDENT TRUSTEE ELIZABETH “LIBBY” BOYLES 
It was moved by Mr. McCracken and seconded by Ms. Stevenson to approve the resolution, as 
presented.   
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Boyles.  Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, 
Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, Mr. McCracken, Dr. Rebholz, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion 
carried. 

3



Minutes of IVCC Board Meeting 
April 11, 2024 
Page 4 
 

_____     _____ 
 EJS          AMS 

Ms. Goetz stated she has done a fantastic job and the Board is proud of her. Dr. Morris read the 
resolution aloud and presented Ms. Boyles with a gift. 
 
CHANGE ORDER – SALT STORAGE FACILITY – RELOCATE WATER MAIN 
It was moved by Ms. Goetz and seconded by Dr. Rebholz to approve the change orders to the Salt 
Storage Facility project of $70,009. This will come from the PHS fund balance. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Boyles.  Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, 
Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, Mr. McCracken, Dr. Rebholz, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion 
carried. 
Mr. McCracken asked if there was a site study done that did not identify the water main. Mr. 
Curley indicated the water main was not on the drawings and was discovered when they started 
digging. 
 
PURCHASE REQUEST – ILLINOIS CENTURY NETWORK (ICN) BANDWIDTH 
UPGRADE 
It was moved by Ms. Stevenson and seconded by Dr. Rebholz to authorize the upgrade/amendment 
to the Illinois Century Network (ICN) Agreement in the amount of $24,000/yearly for a 3yr term. 
Doing so will ensure that we can provide the additional bandwidth to help support the Distance 
Learning environment we will be implementing on premise, maintain operational continuity, and 
provide a seamless experience for our staff, faculty, and students. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Boyles.  Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, 
Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, Mr. McCracken, Dr. Rebholz, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion 
carried. 
Dr. Morris commended Mr. Denton and his team, as well as Ms. Ross for getting ahead of this to 
be prepared for the expanded bandwidth needed for this grant. 
 
BID REQUEST – HAAS CNC MINIMILL WITH SIMULATOR 
It was moved by Dr. Boyles and seconded by Ms. Goetz to accept the bid from HFO Chicago, 
LLC, Elk Grove Village, IL for a Haas CNC Mill for MiniMill at a cost of $42,752.96. the CNC 
Mill will be fully funded by the Perkins Grant.  
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Boyles.  Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, 
Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, Mr. McCracken, Dr. Rebholz, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion 
carried. 
 
BOARD POLICY 02.06 ALTERNATIVE CREDIT 
It was moved by Dr. Donna and seconded by Ms. Stevenson to approve the Board Policy, as 
presented. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Boyles.  Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, 
Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, Mr. McCracken, Dr. Rebholz, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion 
carried. 
 
BOARD POLICY 04.01 BUDGET 
It was moved by Dr. Rebholz and seconded by Ms. Goetz to approve the Board Policy, as 
presented. 

4



Minutes of IVCC Board Meeting 
April 11, 2024 
Page 5 
 

_____     _____ 
 EJS          AMS 

Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Boyles.  Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, 
Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, Mr. McCracken, Dr. Rebholz, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion 
carried. 
Mr. McCracken asked if this policy was brought to the Audit Finance Committee. Dr. Morris 
indicated it was not but future Board policies in section 4 will be sent to the Audit Finance 
Committee using the same process as used with the Planning Committee. 
 
BOARD POLICY 04.02a TAX LEVY 
It was moved by Ms. Goetz and seconded by Mr. McCracken to approve the Board Policy, as 
presented. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Boyles.  Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, 
Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, Mr. McCracken, Dr. Rebholz, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion 
carried. 
Ms. Ross stated policies from other community colleges were reviewed. The goal was to provide 
more structure for anyone new to explain how the tax levy should really look. 
 
REQUEST FOR INACTIVATION – AAS IN CORRECTIONS/PAROLE OFFICER 
It was moved by Dr. Donna and seconded by Ms. Goetz to approve the inactivation of the AAS in 
Corrections/Parole Officer. A one-year teach-out is not needed as there are no active students in 
the program. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Boyles.  Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, 
Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, Mr. McCracken, Dr. Rebholz, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion 
carried. 
 
REQUEST FOR INACTIVATION – AAS IN CORRECTIONS/YOUTH SUPERVISOR 
It was moved by Dr. Donna and seconded by Dr. Boyles to approve the inactivation of the AAS 
in Corrections/Youth Supervisor. A one-year teach-out is not needed as there are no active students 
in the program. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Boyles.  Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, 
Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, Mr. McCracken, Dr. Rebholz, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion 
carried. 
 
APPROVAL – DECENNIAL REPORT 
It was moved by Ms. Stevenson and seconded by Mr. McCracken to approve the Decennial Report, 
as presented. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Boyles.  Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, 
Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, Mr. McCracken, Dr. Rebholz, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion 
carried. 
Dr. Boyles stated she is proud of the work that administration did and the collaboration with other 
colleges as it was solution focused and was done correctly.  
 
PURCHASE REQUEST – USDA DISTANCE LEARNING AND TELEMEDICINE (DLT) 
GRANT MOBILE CLASSROOM EQUIPMENT 
It was moved by Ms. Goetz and seconded by Dr. Rebholz to approve the purchase of the distance 
learning grant mobile classroom equipment not to exceed $1,023,372.44 utilizing the USDA DLT 
Grant in the amount of $889,855 and total match (for all students) of $133,517.44. 

5



Minutes of IVCC Board Meeting 
April 11, 2024 
Page 6 
 

_____     _____ 
 EJS          AMS 

Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Boyles.  Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, 
Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, Mr. McCracken, Dr. Rebholz, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion 
carried. 
Dr. Morris thanked the Board for allowing us to amend the agenda so the equipment can be 
ordered. Ms. Goetz asked if the match is what each school pays or is it divided among the schools. 
Ms. Ross indicated it is divided among the schools. 
 
ITEMS FOR INFORMATION 
Mr. Solon pointed out the information items on pages 67-79 of the Board book. 
 
TRUSTEE COMMENT 
Dr. Rebholz indicated the faculty nominations are wonderful. Dr. Morris noted we nominated in 
as many categories as possible. 
Mr. McCracken thanked the administration for two events last week. They were amazing and 
perfectly orchestrated. 
Dr. Donna asked if all the issues in the science labs will be fixed by the fall semester. Ms. Ross 
stated she has received a list and the lab came through as part of the master plan. Short-term and 
long-term solutions need to be decided. A Facilities Committee meeting will be scheduled in May. 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
Mr. Solon requested a motion and a roll call vote at 6:16 p.m. to enter into a closed session to 
discuss: 1) the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance, or dismissal of 
specific employees of the public body; 2) pending or imminent litigation; 3) student disciplinary 
cases; 4) collective negotiations; and 5) closed session minutes.   
It was moved by Ms. Stevenson and seconded by Dr. Donna to enter into a closed session. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Boyles.  Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, 
Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, Mr. McCracken, Dr. Rebholz, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion 
carried. The Board entered closed session at 6:20 p.m. 
 
It was moved by Dr. Donna and seconded by Ms. Stevenson to return to the regular meeting. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Boyles.  Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, 
Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, Mr. McCracken, Dr. Rebholz, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion 
carried. 
The regular meeting resumed at 7:38 p.m. 
 
POSSIBLE APPROVAL – APPOINTMENT OF VICE PRESIDENT FOR ACADEMIC 
AFFAIRS 
It was moved by Dr. Rebholz and seconded by Mr. McCracken to approve the appointment of Dr. 
Vicki Trier at an annualized salary of $132,000, effective date to be determined but anticipated in 
late May or early June.  
 
CLOSED SESSION MINUTES 
It was moved by Ms. Goetz and seconded by Dr. Boyles to approve and retain the closed session 
minutes of the March 14, 2024 Board Meeting. 

6



Minutes of IVCC Board Meeting 
April 11, 2024 
Page 7 
 

_____     _____ 
 EJS          AMS 

Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Boyles.  Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, 
Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, Mr. McCracken, Dr. Rebholz, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion 
carried. 
 
OTHER 
Dr. Morris reminded the Board to RSVP or notify her if they plan on attending the 100th Birthday 
Bash on April 25. Dr. Morris indicated a Facilities Committee meeting will be scheduled for May.  
An Audit Finance Committee and Closed Session Meeting Minutes Committee meetings will be 
scheduled for June. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Mr. McCracken declared the meeting adjourned at 7:41 p.m. 
 
 
____________________________    _____________________________ 
Everett J. Solon, Board Chair     Angela M. Stevenson, Secretary 

7



 

 
 
 
 
 

DISTRICT NO. 513 

 
 
 

TREASURER'S REPORT  

April 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Kathy Ross 
V.P. for Business Services and Finance/Treasurer 

 
Eric Johnson 

Controller 

8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



Action Item 11 

 

Bid Results – Robotic Welding System 
 
The administration received Board authorization to seek bids for Fabrication Equipment 
for Welding/Warehousing Lab back in December 2022. The decision was made to purchase 
a Robotic Welding System for the welding program with the monies. 
 
Two bids were received: 
 
Company: System: Bid Amount: 
Airgas FANUC/Lincoln System $100,570.23 
Aidex Corporation FANUC/Lincoln System $100,400.00 

   
In addition to having the lowest bid, Aidex is FANUC Robotics’ Authorized Educational 
Representative. They also work with FANUC and APT to provide a FANUC Robot to do 
a welding operation using a Fronius Welding System. The FANUC America Corporation 
Certified Education Training (CERT) Program certifies instructors at educational 
institutions to train their students to program FANUC robots. To accompany the FANUC 
CERT Program, new school locations receive a CERT Instructor Training and Tool Kit 
and a CERT School Comprehensive Educational Package. 

Once the instructor and curriculum are approved, the college will be able to offer FANUC 
credentials to students. 

The Robotic Welding System will be fully funded by the ATOMAT grant. 

 
 
 
Recommendation: 

The administration recommends the Board accept the bid from Aidex Corporation, 
Rossville, IN for a Robotic Welding System at a cost of $100,400. 

 

KPI 6: Resource Management 

33



34



 

 Action Item 12 

 
 
Board Policy (approval) 
 
Board Policy 03.05 Certification of Health includes an update to the policy to be reflective 
of the change to the documentation required in return-to-work situations, which brings us 
in alignment with the law. This policy was shared with the Planning Committee in April, 
2024 and is being brought forward for approval due to the nature of the revisions and 
changes.  

 

 
Recommendation: 
 
Approve Board Policy, as presented. 
 
 
KPI 4:  Support for Employees 
 
 
 

35



Board Policy 03.05  page 1 

 

 
It is the policy of the Board of Trustees of Illinois Valley Community Ccollege that the 
administration may require a Physician’s statement as a basis to pay for a leave of personal illness, 
and/or as a means of verifying an individual’s ability to return to work and/or continue working.  
Positions as outlined in Board Policy 03.21 – Medical/Occupational Examinations will be required 
to undergo an occupational examination at the College’s expense prior to returning to work 
following a qualifying n injury or illness. 

 

Illinois Valley Community College Board Policy 
  

Subject: Certification of Health  Effective Date: 05/14/2020 
   Last Reviewed: 05/14/2020 
Number: 03.05  Last Revised: 05/14/2020 
      

36



 

 Action Item 13 

 
Board Policy (approval) 
 
Board Policy 03.21 Medical-Occupational Examinations includes an update to the policy 
to be reflective of the change to employees who are required to have a physical. This 
recommendation is for any position where the job descriptions have lifting or other physical 
requirements. This policy was shared with the Planning Committee in April, 2024 and is 
being brought forward for approval due to the nature of the revisions and changes.  

However, since the review it has been brought forward for consideration for an additional 
change. The administration would ask the Board to consider whether full-time faculty and 
administration should still be subject to this requirement. This decision can be discussed 
with the full Board to determine which version of the policy will be approved. 

 

 
Recommendation: 
 
Approve Board Policy, as presented. 
 
 
KPI 4:  Support for Employees 
 
 
 

37



Board Policy 03.21  page 1 

 

 
It is the policy of the Board of Trustees of Community College District 513 that the College pays 
the cost of the occupational examination as required of new employees in the facilities department,  
and shipping & and receiving department, and any position where the job descriptions have lifting 
or other physical requirementss.  Offers of employment are contingent upon the results of the 
occupational examination. The College will also pay for the medical examinations of all full-time 
faculty and administrative positions. 
 

 

Illinois Valley Community College Board Policy 
  

Subject: Medical/Occupational Examinations Effective Date: 10/19/2010 
   Last Reviewed: 04/14/2016 
Number: 03.21  Last Revised: 04/14/2016 
      

38



Procedure 03.21.00   page 1 

 

 
Facilities and Shipping & Receiving Employees 
The Office of Human Resources sends the Medical Examination Form to the potential employee. 
The returned form is placed in the appropriate personnel/medical file. The invoice for the 
examination is given to the appropriate supervisor for processing payment. 
 
Faculty and Administrators 
The Executive Assistant to the President sends the Medical Examination Form to the Faculty and 
the Office of Human Resources sends the Medical Examination Form to the Administrator. The 
returned form is placed in the appropriate personnel/medical file. The invoice for the examination 
is given to the appropriate supervisor for processing payment. 
 

 

Illinois Valley Community College Procedure 
  

Subject: Medical/Occupational Examinations Effective Date: 10/19/2010 
   Last Reviewed: 04/14/2016 
Number: 03.21.00  Last Revised: 04/14/2016 
      

Formatted: Highlight

39



 
 
 Action Item 14 
 
 
Faculty Retirement – Dr. Marjorie Francisco, Nursing 
 
Dr. Marjorie Francisco, Faculty, submitted her retirement effective May 31, 2024 
(attached). We thank Dr. Francisco for her dedicated service and wish her well in her 
retirement. 
 
 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Accept the retirement of Dr. Marjorie Francisco, Nursing Faculty, effective May 31, 
2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
KPI 4: Support for Employees 
 

 
 
  
 

40



November 21, 2022 

 

Dr. Corcoran, Dr. Roberts, and the Board of Trustees, 

 

After much soul-searching and reflection, please accept this letter as a notification of my intended 

retirement from Illinois Valley Community College effective May 31, 2024. I have had the honor to 

participate in the education of countless nurses in the Illinois Valley and beyond, many who work 

alongside me at St. Margaret’s Health-Spring Valley and several who are now fellow nursing educators 

here at IVCC.  I thought the decision to retire would be an easy one, but I have found this to be most 

difficult decision in my 44 years in the nursing profession.  

I will truly miss the IVCC family, particularly many of the nursing faculty members who I consider to be 

some of the most dedicated, loyal, and hard-working members of the IVCC community. I will miss the 

students who kept my passion for teaching and learning burning for the last 18 years. 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Dr. Margie Francisco 

IVCC Nursing                                       

41



         Action Item 15  

 

Approval – Vice President Contract – Kathryn Ross, Vice President for Business 
Services and Finance 

Pursuant to the College’s performance evaluation procedures, an annual evaluation for 
Mrs. Kathryn Ross was conducted by Dr. Morris. As a result of the evaluation, a 
recommendation to receive a salary increase for Fiscal Year 2025 and a recommendation 
for Board action follows. 

 

 

Recommendation: 

Approve the FY25 and FY26 employment contract for Kathryn Ross, Vice President 
for Business Services and Finance. This results in an annualized salary of $116,200.00 
and duties, benefits, and other conditions as presented in the contract. Salary for 
FY26 will be presented to the Board for approval in May, 2025. 

 

KPI 4:  Support for Employees 

 

42



Board Policy 01.15 page 1 

Illinois Valley Community College will reimburse members of the Board of Trustees and Student 
Trustees for official Ccollege travel.  Reimbursements will be for official College events or 
meetings of state and national associations which conduct educational programs in the disciplines 
and professions associated with community college programs and operations.  Further, the College 
will reimburse members of the Board of Trustees for attendance at routine business meetings of 
the Illinois Community College Trustees Association, Illinois Community College Board, the 
Illinois Board of Higher Education, the General Assembly and executive branch agencies which 
may be conducting business which may affect Illinois Valley Community College. 

Members of the Board of Trustees’ immediate family may accompany a Board member with no 
additional costs to the College. 

Illinois Valley Community College Board Policy 

Subject: Board Travel, Conference, and Effective Date: 02/25/2010 
Meeting Expenses Last Reviewed: 02/25/2010 

Number: 01.15 Last Revised: 

Information Item 16.1

43



Procedure 01.15.00   page 1 

 

 
Application for Travel 
An application for travel form must be completed and approved in advance for all travel.  Prior 
approval signatures should be on the appropriate lines on the left side of the form.   
 
Travel for members of the Board of Trustees will be signed by the traveler, the Chair or Vice Chair 
of the Board and the Vice President for Business Services and Finance. 
 
After the trip is complete, the same set of approval signatures should be on the appropriate lines 
on the right side of the form. Whenever a travel request is initiated, it must be completed whether 
expenses, as a result of the travel, are incurred or not. 
 
Travel expenses for any member of the Board of Trustees must be approved by a roll-call vote 
during an open meeting of the Board of Trustees. 
 
Travel Expenditures 
All official College travel must be supported by receipts for actual expenditures, and all expenses 
must be itemized for reimbursement on the travel form. Itemizing will include all dollar 
expenditures, participants involved and the function or purpose of the meeting. Cash advances may 
be issued for anticipated costs of at least $100 and l. Lesser expenses will be handled on a 
reimbursement-by-receipt basis, in accordance with established College practices. 
 
Mileage Reimbursement 
Reimbursement for use of personal vehicles on College business shall be at the per mile rate 
approved by the Internal Revenue Service of the United States Government. Proof of vehicle 
insurance (copy of insurance card) must be submitted with the application to travel form prior to 
travel. 
 
Commercial Travel 
Commercial travel shall be reimbursed at actual cost. All receipts for air, bus, rail or other travel 
must be submitted with the official College travel form in order to claim reimbursement. All travel 
will be at coach rates. 
 
Lodging 
Reimbursement for lodging shall cover actual room cost, but not to exceed reasonable and 
customary costs. Receipts for all lodging must be submitted with the travel form in order to claim 
reimbursement. 

Illinois Valley Community College Procedure 
  

Subject: Board Travel, Conference, and  Effective Date: 02/25/2010 
 Meeting Expenses  Last Reviewed: 08/17/2017 
Number: 01.15.00  Last Revised: 10/01/2018 
      

44

sandy_beard
Highlight



Procedure 01.15.00   page 2 

Meals 
Meals will be reimbursed for only those consumed while actually traveling on College business.  
Itemized receipts for all meals consumed while actually traveling must be attached to the travel 
form in order to claim reimbursement. Meal reimbursement will be the actual cost up to a 
maximum of $35 per day including gratuities for non-metropolitan areas (e.g. Springfield, IL) and 
a maximum of $45 per day including gratuities for metropolitan areas (e.g. Chicago). 
No reimbursement will be made for alcoholic beverages. 
 
Tours and Social Activities 
No reimbursement will be made for tours, social activities, or entertainment. 
 

PERMISSIBLE TRAVEL EXPENSES 
 

The maximum reimbursable rates for travel are set forth as follows: 
 

Maximum Reimbursable Rates for Transportation 
Air Travel Lowest reasonable rate (coach) 
Auto IRS Standard Mileage Rate at time of 

reimbursement (e.g. $0.58 / mile for 2019) 
($0.67 per mile as of 1/1/2024) 

Rental Car Lowest reasonable rate (midsize) 
Rail or Bus Lowest reasonable rate and cost shall not 

exceed Air Travel 
Taxi, Shuttle, Rideshare, or Public 
Transportation 

Actual reasonable rate 

 
Maximum Reimbursable Rates for Meals 

Per Day - nonmetropolitan $35.00 
Per Day – metropolitan (Chicago) $45.00 

 
Maximum Reimbursable Rates for Lodging – 2019 rates per IRS 2024 rates per US 

General Services Administration (as of 10/1/2023) 
Chicago and ,Suburban Cook County, and Lake County $223.00 233.00 / night  
DuPage, Kane, Lake, McHenry and Will Counties $1134.00 / night 
St. Clair County (St. Louis Area) $150.00/night 
Will County $113.00/night 
All other Illinois Counties $11207.00 / night 
Outside of Illinois $2233.00 / night or as 

approved by the Board 
Note: When staying at a hotel designated by a conference, the 
conference rate will be the approved rate, even if it exceeds 
the allowable per diem rate. 

 

 
Official Functions 

45



Procedure 01.15.00   page 3 

The College will support the cost of official functions which are conducted for the primary purpose 
of carrying out the business of the College.  All expenditures for meals and other official functions 
must be approved in advance.  Authorized expenditures are categorized as follows: 
 

1. Official College committees and advisory groups meeting outside of normal work 
hours; 

2. Official external committees, advisory groups and guests providing service and/or 
advice and counsel to the College; 

3. College receptions, honors and award activities; 
4. Faculty and staff development, in-service and training functions; 
5. College-sponsored student functions; and 
6. Official functions of the Board of Trustees. 

 

46



Board Policy 03.23 page 1 

It is the policy of the Board of Trustees to refrain from the practice of paying relocation expenses 
for new faculty and administrators. In cases where it may be in the best interest of the Board to 
provide such assistance for new hires, the new hire shall submit a letter of application to the 
Director of Human Resources, which shall be shared with the President. The Board empowers the 
President to authorize reimbursement for eligible expenses when receipts are produced. Eligible 
expenses are those involved in one move of household effects only. 

Illinois Valley Community College Board Policy 

Subject: Moving Expense Reimbursement Effective Date: 10/19/2010 
for Faculty and Administration Last Reviewed: 01/11/2018 

Number: 03.23 Last Revised: 01/11/2018 

Information Item 16.2

47



Procedure 03.23.00   page 1 

 

 
If the President determines that it is in the best interest of the College to assist a new hire with 
expenses incurred due to moving into the District, the new hire must submit a letter of application 
to the Director of Human Resources explaining why their move warrants special consideration 
within one year of the employee’s start date. To qualify for moving expense reimbursement, the 
distance from the employee’s former home to IVCC must be at least 50 miles more than from the 
employee’s former home to their former place of employment. 
 
The Board empowers the President to provide assistance for eligible expenses for new faculty in 
an amount generally not to exceed $500 and for new administrators generally not to exceed $1,000. 
Eligible expenses are those involved in one move of household effects only, and receipts must be 
provided. 
 
If approved, the Office of Human Resources will prepare a requisition or stipend for 
reimbursement as appropriate with current IRS regulations. 
 

 

Illinois Valley Community College Procedure 
  

Subject: Moving Expense Reimbursement  Effective Date: 10/19/2010 
   Last Reviewed: 01/11/2018 
Number: 03.23.00  Last Revised: 01/11/2018 
      

48

sandy_beard
Highlight

sandy_beard
Highlight



Board Policy 05.01 page 1 

It is the policy of the Board of Trustees of Illinois Valley Community College to recognize the 
importance of institutional planning.   

All major institutional decisions continue to be based on an on-going process of short-range and 
long-range planning that involves the Board of Trustees and all College constituents. The 
educational philosophy of the College, its stated objectives, its educational programs, and all 
proposals concerning budgeting, staffing, programming, and developing the campus are 
continuously and systematically reviewed before the Board of Trustees authorizes definitive 
action. 

Responsibility for guiding institutional planning lays in the President's office. The President enlists 
the assistance of all staff, faculty, students, and community advisory committees. 

IVCC leaders set direction through formal, interrelated planning processes and through the formal 
committee structure. Formal planning processes include strategic planning, academic planning, 
financial planning (Budget Council), technology planning (Information Technology [IT] Strategic 
Plan), and Master Planning (facilities). The strategic planning process sets goals for a five-year 
period of time. Annually, departments will align these goals with their annual plans and operating 
budgets. The College’s Budget Council determines funding for initiatives that meet the goals set 
out in the strategic and annual plans. The College updates the academic plan every three years. 
The facilities Master Plan is updated every five years to anticipate additional facilities and 
infrastructure needed to carry out the Mission, Vision, and Core Values. The IT Strategic Plan is 
updated annually to align the technology needs of the College with the strategic planning and 
budgeting processes. The Board of Trustees approves the strategic plan and the facilities Master 
Plan as well as the annual operating budgets. 

IVCC’s committee structure, led by the Strategic Leadership and Planning Council (SLPC), also 
provides leadership through a shared governance model aligned with the Mission, Vision, and 
Core Values. Membership on committees and associated teams includes representation from 
administration, faculty, and support staff, with standing members and rotating membership terms. 
Committee chairs review or establish their charges within the context of the Mission, Vision, and 
Core Values and report the committees’ progress.  In addition to shepherding the strategic planning 
process, SLPC reviews department annual plans for alignment with the College’s goals and 
objectives.  

Illinois Valley Community College Board Policy 

Subject: Institutional Planning Effective Date: 01/17/2012 
Last Reviewed: 11/14/2019 

Number: 05.01 Last Revised: 11/14/2019 

Information Item 16.3

49



Board Policy 05.01  page 2 

IVCC’s planning process includes a commitment to examine the feasibility of joint ventures with 
other education, business, government, and community-based agencies in order to promote the 
most effective utilization of available resources.  Broad-based institutional planning necessitates 
local reliance on the Illinois Community College Board to gather and disseminate pertinent 
information about all colleges in the statewide system. 
 
IVCC believes that systematic evaluation is essential to effective institutional planning. 

 

50



Information Item 16.4

51

sandy_beard
Highlight



52



53



Information Item 16.5

54



TO: Board of Trustees 

FROM: Dr. Tracy Morris, President 

DATE: April 30, 2024 

SUBJECT: Nursing Fellowship Award

Cathy Lenkaitis was recently selected for the Illinois Board of Higher Education Nurse Educator 
Fellowship. This program provides fellowship awards of $10,000 to nursing faculty in pre-
licensure registered professional programs that have programmatic accreditation and are 
offered by Illinois institutions of higher education. Funds may be used for professional 
development, conference expenses, continued education, professional dues, and other related 
activities. Fifty-four fellowships were awarded in the first round of applications received and this 
round awarded 26 additional fellowships for this second round of new applications. 

Since Cathy began her career at IVCC in 2021, her focus has been on developing additional 
hands-on training through simulation and skills labs. She has fully overseen the development of a 
new simulation lab and is always looking for new ideas on how to make learning interactive for 
our nursing students. We are proud of Cathy for her work in the nursing program and are excited 
to see what opportunities this fellowship will provide in building the future of our nursing 
program.  

MEMORANDUM

Information Item 16.6

55



N
AM

E
PO

SI
TI

O
N

D
EP

AR
TM

EN
T 

/ 
D

IV
IS

IO
N

ST
AT

U
S 

(P
T)

Pa
rt

-t
im

e;
 

(F
T)

Fu
ll-

tim
e

D
at

e 
H

R 
Re

ce
iv

ed
 N

ot
ic

e 
/ 

Le
tt

er
 o

n 
Fi

le
 (Y

) /
 (N

)
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e

Re
as

on
Vi

ck
er

s,
 Je

ss
ic

a
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tiv
e 

As
sis

ta
nt

 - 
I

Ce
nt

er
 fo

r A
cc

es
sib

ili
ty

 a
nd

 
N

eu
ro

di
ve

rs
ity

PT
N

/A
04

.1
0.

20
24

te
rm

in
at

io
n

IT
EM

S 
FO

R 
IN

FO
RM

AT
IO

N
ST

AF
F 

SE
PA

RA
TI

O
N

S
9-

M
ay

-2
4

Information Item 16.7

56



  Approved by the Board (01-18-2024) 

 

 
 
 

College Core Values 
Achieving Excellence through our Core Values (acronym is I-CARE) 

Integrity 
Compassion 
Accountability 
Respect 
Equity 

 
 
 
 

Vision Statement 
Illinois Valley Community College will foster personal and professional 
growth and well-being for our students and community through growing 

programs, updated facilities, and educational innovation. 
 
 
 
 

Mission Statement 
Illinois Valley Community College is dedicated to creating opportunities for 

students and our community by providing access to affordable, 
high-quality higher education and lifelong learning. 

 
 


	Board Packet Cover (with new branding)
	815 North Orlando Smith Road
	A G E N D A
	NOTE: If you are unable to attend this meeting, or if you have questions regarding


	Board Packet Inside Cover January 2024
	DRAFT Board Agenda - May 9, 2024
	ILLINOIS VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
	A G E N D A


	DRAFT Board Minutes - April 11, 2024
	Dr. Morris reminded the Board to RSVP or notify her if they plan on attending the 100th Birthday Bash on April 25. Dr. Morris indicated a Facilities Committee meeting will be scheduled for May.  An Audit Finance Committee and Closed Session Meeting Mi...
	ADJOURNMENT
	Mr. McCracken declared the meeting adjourned at 7:41 p.m.
	____________________________    _____________________________ Everett J. Solon, Board Chair     Angela M. Stevenson, Secretary

	treasurers report cover-NEW branding
	Financial pages scanned
	Bid Results Robotic Welding System
	Aidex FANUC GIFT IN KIND Letter - Robotic Welding System
	Board Policy Action Item 03.05
	03.05 Certification of Health 4.16.2024
	Board Policy Action Item 03.21
	03.21 Medical-Occupational Examinations 4.19.2024
	03.21.00 Medical-Occupational Examinations DRAFT
	Action Item - Faculty Retirement Francisco_Marjorie Nursing Faculty
	Francisco_Marjorie Retirement letter dated 11.21.22 (2024.05.31)
	Action Item - VP Contracts FY25 - Kathy Ross
	01.15 Board Travel, Conference, draft 3.18.2024
	01.15.00 Board Travel Conference etc draft 4.18.2024
	03.23 Moving Expense Reimbursement for Faculty and Administrators DRAFT 03-21-24
	03.23.00 Moving Expense Reimbursement..DRAFT 3-21-24
	05.01 Institutional Planning draft 4.18.2024
	03.30.01 Paid Benefit Time - Vacation DRAFT 04.19.2024
	Renewal of Lease for U of I Extension
	Nursing Fellowship Award
	2024.05.09 Employee Separations Report
	Sheet1

	Board Packet Inside Back Cover - Vision, Mission, Goals Revised 01-19-2024



